
           

* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION

OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, November 19, 2020, 5:45 P.M.

CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

Pursuant to Section 551.127, Texas Government Code, one or more Council Members or employees may
attend this meeting remotely using videoconferencing technology. The videoconferencing technology can be

accessed at www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession.
The video and audio feed of the videoconferencing equipment can be viewed and heard by the public at the

address posted above as the location of the meeting.
The City of Corinth is following the Center for Disease Control Guidelines for public meetings. 

           
CALL TO ORDER:
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

 
1. Receive a presentation from Wolverine Interests and hold a discussion on the creation of a Municipal

Management District ("MMD") to enable and encourage development on catalyst properties within the
Transit Oriented Development ("TOD") District.

 
2. Annual Report from the Planning and Zoning Commission Chair, Brian Rush.

 
3. Presentation on the Boat and Recreational Vehicle (RV) parking regulations and proposed amendment.

 
4. Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff with direction regarding the City's tree

preservation ordinance.
 

5. Receive an update and hold a discussion on the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone ("TIRZ").
 

6. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

  

 
ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION
 

                                            1

http://www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession


 
*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City
Hall located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".
 

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

 
1. Consider and act on minutes from the October 1, 2020, workshop session.
 

2. Consider and act on minutes from the October 1, 2020, regular session.
 

3. Consider and act on minutes from the September 24, 2020, special session.
 

4. Consider and approve execution of Development Agreement for certain Park and Trail Improvements
within the Amherst Subdivision Development on the west side of Parkridge Drive, south of Warwick
Drive.

 

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and
may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if
you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed
to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of
the City of Corinth.

 

BUSINESS AGENDA

 
5. Consider adoption of a resolution directing publication of notice of intention to issue certificates of

obligation to provide funds for street improvements, municipal drainage improvements, and water and
sewer improvements; and resolving other matters relating to the subject.

 
6. Consider and act on an ordinance of the City of Corinth, Texas amending Section 71.07, Parking Certain

Vehicles in Residential Areas, of Chapter 71, Stopping, Standing, and Parking of Title VII, Traffic Code,
of the City's Code of Ordinances. 

 

                                            2



           
7. Consider and act on the placement of members for the Board of Adjustments, Board of Construction

Appeals, and the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be
added as a business item to any future agenda.

 

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the
above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.071.  (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter
551.

a. Consider acquisition

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

a. Project Agora
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on
any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.
 
RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS.
 
ADJOURN:
 

Posted this _____ day of ________ 2020, at _____ on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

                                            3



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Presentation and Discussion on the Creation of a Municipal Management District
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement &
Proactive Government

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation from Wolverine Interests and hold a discussion on the creation of a Municipal Management
District ("MMD") to enable and encourage development on catalyst properties within the Transit Oriented
Development ("TOD") District.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
On October 22, 2020, staff provided an overview on the implementation and use of MMDs to stimulate new
investment pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 375 of the Texas Local Government Code. The MMD has
emerged as another potential revenue stream to assist the City with achieving the vision for the TOD District.
Accordingly, the purpose of this presentation is to provide additional insights on MMDs and how this economic
development tool can assist real estate developers like Wolverine Interests with activating the vast potential of the
TOD District.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A.

                                            4



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Annual Report from the Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director  Submitted By: Miguel Inclan, Planner
Finance Review: Legal Review: 
City Manager Review: 
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Citizen Engagement & Proactive Government
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Annual Report from the Planning and Zoning Commission Chair, Brian Rush.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Brian Rush, the Chair of the Corinth Planning and Zoning Commission will give a presentation on the
Commission's actions this year.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

                                            5



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Boat and RV Regulations Amendment - Worksession
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director  Submitted By: George Marshall, Engineer
Finance Review: Legal Review: 
City Manager Review: 
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Citizen Engagement & Proactive Government

AGENDA ITEM
Presentation on the Boat and Recreational Vehicle (RV) parking regulations and proposed amendment.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Staff will present a summary of the previous workshops, citizen survey, and council direction for an amendment to
the Boat and Recreational Vehicle (RV) parking regulations.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

                                            6



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Tree Preservation Amendment
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director 
Submitted By: Michelle Mixell, Planning & Development Manager
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff with direction regarding the City's tree preservation
ordinance.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Staff will present benchmark analysis of tree preservation regulations for various cities and provide
recommendations to improve Corinth’s standards.

The benchmark analysis is included as an attachment to this item.
 

RECOMMENDATION
A staff recommendation will be provided prior to the meeting.

Attachments
Tree Preservation Benchmark Analysis 

                                            7



Tree Preservation Benchmark Analysis 

11/12/20 

Municipality Definition of 
Protected Tree 

Exemptions Protected Tree Replacement Ratio Credits Approval Other 

City of Corinth Trunk 6” + ca l iper 
inches measured at 
DBH 
 
- Conta ins an exclusion 
l i st 
 
 
 

(1) Protected Tree located in the yard area of a 
“developed and owner-occupied residential 
property” 

(2) Protected Tree overhang/lateral over Public 
Property 

Protected Trees are replaced at a 1:1 rate equal to 
tota l  caliper inches removed. 

 

Ci ty Counci l may (as part of Al ternative Compliance 

Approval) permit in certain situations: 
(1) fees-in-lieu-of replacement  
(2) Replacement trees planted off-site 

 
 *no min caliper for replacement trees specified 

 

Heavily Treed Site – 50% Reduction of Required 
Replacement Trees.  
 
50% reduction provided for Protected Trees required 
to be replaced, i f the site is considered “heavily 
treed” by demonstrating existing Tree Canopy 
Coverage is 50% or more. 
 
Note that this i s NOT a “preservation credit” for 

preserving Protected Trees. The standard as written 
encourages clear-cutting practices.  

Ci ty Counci l Al ternative Compliance Approval (Tree 
Replacement and Fee-in-lieu-of replacement) 
 
Required for new development Preliminary Plat and Site Plan 
(Tree Survey/Tree Protection Plan) 

Bui lding Official may permit removal when Protected Tree 
constitutes a  hazard or i s dying, dead, diseased, etc. 

Past practice (both through staff 
code interpretation and several 
CC Approved PD Ordinances 
have exempted Protected Trees 
from “replacement ca lculations” 
when located within the 
proposed ROW, easements, 
bui lding pads, 5’ around building 
pads and driveways from 

replacement calculations 
 
-No purpose statement. 

Ci ty of Frisco 6” + ca l iper inches 
measured at DBH 

 

Removal of Protected Tree without mitigation:   
(1) Protected Tree in hazardous or dangerous 

condition 
(2) Located in ROW or easement AND hinders or 

obstructs the construction, maintenance, 

repair, and/or replacement of major or 
minor thoroughfares, water and sewer lines, 

dra inage and stormwater infrastructure and 
other public improvement projects 

(3) Single Family and two family lots (contained 

within a plat or record) 
(4) Uti l ity Companies 
(5) Golf Courses and Pedestrian Trails (at a  rate 

of 50% requirements for Replacement Trees 

Protected Trees are replaced by planting trees equal 
to the tota l caliper inches as ca lculated below. 

 
Less than 6” = 0 
6”-12” = 1:1 

12.1” – 20” = 1:1.5 
20.1” or greater = 1:3 

 
*min of 3” caliper trees for replacement 

(1) Protected Trees may be transplanting without 
being subject to replacement rates – unless 
dies then 1:1 

(2) Trees  in proposed driveways, right turn lanes 
and/or median openings subject to 1:1 

replacement 
(3) Riparian buffer and flood plain shall be 

mitigated  

No Credits  Administrative Approval -Director 
 

Permit required for “transplanting and/or removal (including 
mitigation) of a ll trees within the ci ty regardless size or species 
(except SF or 2F lot contained within a  plat of record). 

  
Permit Required: May be submitted at any time noting reasons, 

s i te plan or planting plan and detailed tree survey (showing 
Protected Trees and anticipated Protected Tree losses) and/or 
preservation plan. 

 
Tree Preservation Plan (detail in info beyond Tree Survey) 
required for Preliminary Plat and Preliminary Si te Plan: Al l 
res idential subdivisions, and Nonresidential/MF - Only required 
for areas intended to be disturbed 

-Conta ins purpose statement 

Ci ty of Al len 6” + ca l iper inches 
measured at DBH 

 
- No l i sts 

(1) Single-Family lots and duplex lots which 
have received final inspection 

(2) Real Property having Agricultural-Open 
Space Zoning (except that no tree removal 

permit may be issued for any fence row or 
his toric trees and property is not proposed 
for development) 

Replacement ratio is based on a  calculation 
cons idering positive credits, negative credits, and 

replacement credits.   
 

*min of 3” caliper trees for replacement and 
calculated in addition to landscaping requirements 

**Overstory trees planted as part of landscape 
buffer planting and parking lot landscaping shall 
qualify as replacement trees 

 
--- 
Ci ty permits the following in certain situations: 

(3) fees-in-lieu-of replacement  
(4) Replacement trees planted off-site  

 

Pos i tive Credits.  For every Protected Tree preserved 
as  part of development process the following credits 

are provided for each caliper inch: 
6”-10” = 1:1 

10.1 – 15” = 2:1 
15”+ = 3:1 
 

Negative Credits. For Protected Tree loss (including 
fence row trees) the negative credits are subtracted:  
6”-10” = 2:1   
10.1 – 15” 4:1 
*Healthy “unprotected (desirable by Urban Forester) 
trees  (outside floodplain) 
12”+ = 0.5:1 
 
Replacement Tree Credits. Trees with caliper inches 
as  follows are added as follows: 
15.1” – 24” = 2:1 
24”+ = 3:1 

Administrative Approval – Urban Forester  
 

*Permit and Tree Mitigation Agreement Required (owner and 
ci ty) to ensure 3 year survivability/replacement of trees planted 

 
Required for all tree removal except as noted under exemptions 
 

Ca lculation: 
(1) Total  Tree Credits for 

Protected Trees Preserved 
(2) + Tota l tree credits for 

health unprotected trees 
preserved 

(3) – tota l  healthy “desirable” 

unprotected trees removed 
(4) + tota l  Replacement trees 

credits  
(5) – tota l  negative tree credits 

for Protected Trees 
removed 
________________ 
= Tota l ca liper inches 
required for replanting  
 

-Conta ins purpose statement 
-Protects  “existing fence 

row/historic trees” 
Ci ty of Rowlett 8” + ca l iper inches 

measured at DBH 
 
- Conta ins an exclusion 

l i st 
 

Agricul tural property 

Homeowners – residence of 2 or less acres i f 
res idence is used as a homestead 
Property owned or leased by public utility 

(excluding administration office or functions) 
Landscape nursery 

Gol f Course (only within areas of tee boxes, 
fa i rways and greens) 
ROW owned or leased by government entity 

Protected Trees are replaced at 1:1 rate 

*Trees  required as part of landscaping not 
cons idered replacement trees 
----------- 

(1) May be replaced on site, ci ty park, private 
open space, public median 

(2) Fee-in-lieu-of replacement may be considered 
 
*no min caliper in for replacement defined 

Credit for Saved Trees.   

2 ca l iper inches granted per each saved tree.  
 
E.g., 100 protected trees on s ite and 50 trees are 

saved, then 100 ca liper inches are credited against 
replacement (except in floodplain)  

 

Administrative Approval – Di rector though may refer to PZ and 

PRC and Tree Board 
* Plats, site plan and BP require Tree Survey/Plan (protected 
trees  preserved, to be removed and replaced) 

*Requires a pre-clearing 

conference 
*Requires replacement 1:1 
should trees die within 1 year 

after completion of construction 
 

-Conta ins purpose statement 

 

                                            8



Municipality Definition of Protected 
Tree 

Exemptions Protected Tree Replacement Ratio Credits Approval Other 

City of Plano 8” + ca l iper inches 
measured at DBH  
 
-No l i sts 

(1) SF, duplex, SF attached 
(2) Single family developments – buildable 

area, areas needed for proper drainage, 
public s treet ROW, Public Utility Easements  

(3) Nonresidential/Multifamily developments – 

bui lding pads, proposed public s treet ROW, 
Publ ic Utility Easements, and Fire Lanes 

(4) Uti l ity franchise easements 
(5) Nursery’s 
(6) City ROW, s treets parks, and other public 

property 
(7) Native/ well adapted species, i f diseased 

Replacement Trees shall be provided as follows 
based on ca liper inches: 
 
8” - 30” = 1:1 
30”+ = 1.5:1 

 
*min of 4” in caliper in replacement  

 
 

Tree Preservation Credits.   
Appl ies only to nonresidential and multifamily 
development as follows.  
(1) For every 8”+ tree preserved (in good 

condition) a  credit of 2 trees as required by 

ordinance shall give to off-set [ordinance 
requirements] 

(2) A max credit of 1/3rd the required trees are 
a l lowed per s ite 

(3) Trees  designated as “mitigation trees” are not 

to be considered for “tree credit” and must be 
accounted for at 100%. 

Administrative Approval - Director 
Required for Preliminary Plats and Site Plans – Tree 
Survey and Preservation Plan (with Tree Mitigation 
proposed) 

Encourage larger ca liper trees for required 
landscaping by permitting the mitigation 
inches for replacement to be applied 
parking lot edge and interior and open 
space trees on a 1:1 ca liper inch basis – 

shown on landscape plan. 
 

-Conta ins purpose statement 

Ci ty of 
Denton 

(1) Landmark Trees – 
Speci fically 
des ignated 

(2) 6”+ (Quality Trees) 
(3) 18”+ (Heri tage 

Trees ) 
(4) 6”+ (Post Oaks) 

(5) Any tree not l isted 
above considered 
Secondary Tree 

 
Appl ies to: 

(1) Undeveloped land 
(2) Nonresidential and 

multifamily property 

to be redeveloped 
(3) Exis ting SF and 

Duplex applying for 
demolition permit 
for principle 

s tructure and 
protected trees have 
DBH 10” + 

 

-No l i sts 

(4) Agricul ture Operations 
(5) SF or duplex (existing on plat) 
(6) Any tree dead, diseased, hazardous, etc. 

(7) TX Dept Agric Noxious/Invasive Plant list 
(8) Understory trees impacted by soil boring 

tests or survey 
(9) Publ ic need, danger or ca lamity – tree 

hinders or obstructs the construction, 
maintenance, repair, or replacement of ci ty 
s treets, water and sewer lines, and 
dra inage and storm sewer 

(10) Located in any ROW required under 

“mobi lity/thoroughfare plan” to be 
dedicated to ci ty – DOES NOT include trees 
being removed for proposed driveways, 

R/L turn lanes or median openings 

(1) Landmark Trees (100% shall be preserved) 
(2) Heri tage and Quality Trees (30% of total DBH 

shall be preserved with in the development)* 

• Heri tage and Quality Trees may be 
reduced to 20% provided that, habitat i s 

preserved either dedicated as a  
conservation easement or as restricted on 
plat All protected trees and non-protected 
trees  greater than 6”+ count toward 20% 
requirement 

• Preserved habitat must contain the 
minimum preservation amount, a stand of 

tree and understory and shall be greater 
than 10% of the property or 5,000 SF 

(3) Al l  other trees removed shall be replaced 

Replacement rates are based on DBH as follows: 
(1) Heri tage Tree=-all Quality Trees 18”+ = 2:5:1 

AND, Post Oaks 6”+ = 2.5:1 
(2) Qual ity Tree=All Non-Secondary Trees 6” – 

18”= 2:1 
(3) Secondary Tree = 4 inches to every tree 

removed (Ash, Bois D’Arc, Hackberry or 

Cottonwood) 
*min of 2” in caliper in replacement 

** new trees required to satisfy landscaping 
provisions shall be counted towards replacement  
***Relocation of Heritage and Quality Trees 

permitted 

Replacement Tree Calculation Automatic Credit.   
(1) 50% credit automatically given off total 

ca lculated DBH for all residential development 

and/or mixed use development 
(2) 40% credit automatically given off total 

ca lculated DBH for nonresidential development 
Tree Preservation Credit.  Additional credit is given 

for a l l Protect Trees that are preserved as follows: 
(1) Landmark tree or any trees preserved in a 

conservation easement or preserved habitat = 
4” credit against each 1” inch of required 
mitigation (4:1 credit) 

(2) Heri tage Tree = 3” credit against each 1” inch 
of required mitigation (3:1 credit) 

(3) Qual ity Tree = 2” credit against each 1” inch of 

required mitigation (2:1 credit) 
(4) Secondary Trees – 0.5 credit (provided the 

minimum preservation of 30% is achieved 
through preserving heritage and quality trees) 
and preserved secondary trees may not exceed 

50% of preserved DBH of quality trees 
Incentives. 
(1) Energy Conservation Credit 
(2) Heri tage Tree Credit (beyond minimum 

preservation requirement – Replacement 
credit of 4x DBH  

(3) Conservation Easement Credit - Replacement 
credit of 2x i f planted within easement 

(3) Permit required for New Development 
(4) Tree Survey and Preservation/Replacement Plan 

required with initial application for site plan, 

prel iminary plat, replat, gas well site plan, clear or 
grade permit and may be required with zoning, 
SUP, or PD 

(5) City Counci l may approve relief of Preservation 

Requirements 
(6) Tree Replacement Plan must be approved prior 

to final plat or replat and a note shall be placed 
on the plat referencing the approved Tree 
Preservation Plan 

(7) Tree Replacement Plan must be approved prior 
to Si te Plan or Tree Removal Permit approval and 
a  note shall be placed on the plan referencing the 

approved Tree Preservation Plan 
---- 

*Alternatives to Tree Replacement (fee-in-lieu-of 
replacement, Tree donation to Park Dept, 
Conservation Easement grant to ci ty by plat 

Tree measurement alternatives a llow: 
(1) measuring below the minimum DBH to 

be counted toward Protected Trees 

when result would result in: 
a . A greater number of Post 

Oak trees being preserved 
regardless of DBH 

b. Preservation of protected 
trees  would cause a  
substantial burden – BUT 
smaller secondary DBH trees 
are located in a way that 

trees  can be incorporated 
into s ite design 

(2) Secondary trees to count towards 

minimum required preservation 
instead of quality trees 

 
-Conta ins purpose statement 
-Provides incentive credits to protect 

habitat 
-Requires 30% of heritage and quality trees 
to be protected 
-Requires 100% of landmark trees to be 

projected 

Ci ty of 

Carrol lton 

4”+ ca l iper inches 

measured at DBH 
 
-Conta ins a  Protected 

Tree List 
 

(1) SF, Duplex, and SF attached after initial 

development of a lot and final inspection of 
development 

(2) Redevelopment of SF, Duplex or SF 

Attached dwellings on a  lot 
(3) Uti l ity providers (maintenance or 

installation) 
(4) Nursery 
(5) Damaged or diseased tree 

4”-12” DBH =1:1 with a  minimum of 3” in caliper 

equivalent to 100% DBH removed 
12” – 30” DBH=1:1 with minimum of 4” to 3” DBH 
ca l iper equivalent to 100% of DBH removed 

30” + = 1:1 with a  minimum of 6” ca liper, equivalent 
to 100 percent 

 
 

Replacement Credit. 

(1) Replacement trees may be used to meet other 
planting requirements of Zoning on site though 
NOT within required landscape buffer 

Permit required – Administrative - Ci ty Manager or 

des ignee. Tree Survey/Tree Pres plan Required 
-Replacement on subject site, within public land or 
private i rrigated open space, or Fee-in-lieu-of 

-Ci ty Counci l may approve variance to a ll or a  portion 
of req to provide replacement trees i f public or rec 

use, or s tructure not including ROW, Private use 
requiring large area of impervious surface, heavily 
forested sites where strict adherence would 
unreasonably burden the use of property 

-No purpose statement 

-requires protected trees within 25’ of a  
s i te or 50’ of construction to be shown on 
survey 

-34% cap on number of replacement trees 
of same species if 12 or more required. 

Ci ty of 

Coppell 

6”+ ca l iper inches 

measured at DBH 
 
- Conta ins an exclusion 

l i st 
 

 

SF after being occupied, Nursery, utility 

companies, public utility & construction, Building 
footprint of Light Industrial zoned areas 

Protected Trees = 1:1 rate equal for DBH removed 

and replace the “character of natural landscape” 
Specimen Trees= 10:1 
His toric Trees=cannot be removed unless hardship 

approved by Ci ty Council 
- May replace on site or on public land 

-Fees are s liding scale: 
12” less DBH=$100/1” of DBH 
12”=$200/1”of DBH 
-His toric Trees=Appraisal of tree removed 

Non-Residential Property Credit (not adjacent to 

res idential): 
- Preservation credit based on % of protected 

trees  preserved on site 

- 1:1 Landscape credit for each 1” of approved 
trees  planted on s ite (used to fulfill landscape 

requirements up to 50% (outlines exceptional 
cases) 

Permit required (tree survey and indicate protected, 

removed, replaced) – Admin Approval – required for 
prel iminary plat, replat, final plat, site plan and 
bui lding permit 

-Conta ins purpose statement 

-Protect trees within 50’ of construction or 
development 
- bi l ingual signage showing protected trees  

 
 

S:\Planning and Development\Planning\City Comparisons\Tree mitigation\Mixell CC-Summary- Tree Preservation Benchmark Analysis.docx 

                                            9



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Update on the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement &
Proactive Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Receive an update and hold a discussion on the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone ("TIRZ").

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The TIRZ is a signature goal of the Strategic Plan. Adopted on September 5, 2019, the purpose of the TIRZ is to
generate revenues to spur increased investment within Corinth's urban core --- Agora --- and on properties
primarily flanking Interstate Highway 35E. Presently, the City is committed to contributing fifty (50) percent of its
tax increment into the TIRZ fund to finance projects, improvements and related initiatives that will increase
investment within the TIRZ. However, the City's tax increment, alone, will not be sufficient to finance the projects,
improvements and related initiatives at a scale necessary to realize and achieve the community's vision for the
economic and physical development of Corinth. Securing Denton County's participation in the TIRZ will
substantially assist the City in achieving its development goals.

Accordingly, the purpose of this update and discussion is to inform the City Council on conversations regarding
Denton County's participation in the TIRZ and the positive impact that the County's participation will have on the
TIRZ and the community's future.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A.

                                            10



   
    CONSENT ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: October 1, 2020, Workshop Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the October 1, 2020, workshop session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the October 1, 2020, workshop session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the October 1, 2020, workshop session minutes.

Attachments
October 1, 2020, Workshop Session Minutes 

                                            11



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 1st day of October 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Workshop Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place, and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator 
Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshall 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 P.M., and immediately adjourned into Closed Session. Mayor 
Heidemann reconvened into the workshop session at 6:03 P.M. 
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Update council on results from Golf Cart Survey. 
 
Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator, updated the Council on the golf cart survey results. He discussed the 
visibility concern at Corinth Parkway and I-35. He also confirmed the only golf cart transportation is for travel to and 
from the golf course.  
 
Police Chief Garner stated that tickets had not been written to date. He also agrees with the staff’s prohibited street 
listings.  
 
City Manager Hart stated the golf cart study ties into the traffic study, which will be discussed in a future meeting. 
 

                                            12



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            13



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            14



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            15



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            16



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            17



 
 

 
 

2. Discuss Tree Preservation Regulations. 
 
City Manager Hart did not discuss this item due to the information discussed in Closed Session. Staff will prepare to 
discuss in the October 22nd meeting.  

 
3. Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed session items as set 

forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.  
 
 

Closed Session convened at 5:46 P.M. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council convened in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act. 
 
a. Tree Preservation Regulations 

 

b. Update on internal control review 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 
 
a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs Road 

within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (F) 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.  

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body 
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the 
territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 

b. Project Daylight 

                                            18



 
 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council.  
City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda 
item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

Closed Session recessed at 6:02 P.M. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the workshop session at 6:20 P.M. 

 

AYES: 

 

Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                            19



   
    CONSENT ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: October 1, 2020, Regular Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the October 1, 2020, regular session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the October 1, 2020, regular session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the October 1, 2020, regular session minutes.

Attachments
October 1, 2020, Rregular Session Minutes 

                                            20



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 1st day of October 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The 
meeting date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, 
Section 551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 

Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 

Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator 
Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshall 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 6:21 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by Council 
Member Garber followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge. 
 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no citizen comments. 

 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Consider and act on a Resolution approving continuation of 2019-2020 pay schedules for Police 

and Fire employees; and providing for an effective date. 

                                            21



 
 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director shared with the Council that the pay plan would be a 
continuation of the 2019-2020 pay plan, requesting approval for the 2020-2021 fiscal year. She stated 
they will re-evaluate in November. 

 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to approve the resolution as presented. Council Member 
Pickens seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

2. Consider and act on nominations, appointments, resignations, and removal of board members. 
 

  
 
MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve as presented. Mayor Pro Tem Burke seconded 
the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Burke thanked the staff for their part with a smooth board applicant interview process. 

                                            22



 
 

  
Council Member Henderson praised the staff for the interview process and noted the board applicant’s 
positive comments about the Planning and Development Department.  
  
City Manager Hart advised the Council of calls regarding Halloween. He indicated that staff is instructing 
practicing social distancing procedures. 
  
Mayor Heidemann the board appointment interviews. He stated the applicants commended the City for 
their communication efforts. Many applicants appreciated the Police Department’s timely response to issues 
on their communications pages. He thanked the staff for their professionalism. 
 

There was no closed session during the Regular Session Meeting. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

a. Tree Preservation Regulations 

 

b. Update on internal control review 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs 
Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, 

Texas (F) 

 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer 
or employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 
b. Project Daylight 

 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

                                            23



 
 

SESSION ITEMS. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 6:31 P.M. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                            24



   
    CONSENT ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: September 24, 2020, Special Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the September 24, 2020, special session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the September 24, 2020, special session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the September 24, 2020, special session minutes.

Attachments
September 24, 2020, Special Session Minutes 

                                            25



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 
On this, the 24th day of September 2020, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 
551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 

Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 

Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Administration, Communications & Marketing Director 
Chris Rodriguez, Assistant Finance Director 
Patricia Adams, Rockefeller, & Fort 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director 
Michael Ross, Fire Chief 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services & Communications Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Lance Stacy, City Marshall 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by Council 
Member Garber followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge. 
 
Mayor Heidemann recessed the Special Session Meeting at 5:47 P.M. to convene into Closed 

Session. Mayor Heidemann recessed the Closed Session and reconvened back into Special Session 
at 6:04 P.M. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one 
motion. Should the Mayor, a Council Member, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will 
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

1. Consider and act on the minutes from the August 13, 2020, workshop session. 
 

2. Consider and act on minutes from the August 13, 2020, regular session. 
 

3. Consider and act on minutes from the August 20, 2020, workshop session. 
 

4. Consider and act on minutes from the August 20, 2020, regular session.  
 
 

                                            26



 
 

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve the Consent Agenda and seconded by Mayor Pro 
Tem Burke.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 
Wilma Stackhouse of 3812 Red Oak Drive filled out a citizen comment request form. She decided not to 
speak but wrote the following: This is not the time to burden the taxpayer with any of these items. People 
are out of jobs or their salaries have been cut. Covid-19 is not over. Spring might be a better time.  

 
BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 
1. Consider and act on an Ordinance adopting the 2020-2021 Annual Budget and appropriating 

resources for the budget year beginning October 1, 2020. 
 
Finance Director Bunselmeyer gave a presentation to the City Council for the 2020-2021 Annual Budget. 
She responded to questions from the Council.  
 

 
 

                                            27



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            28



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            29



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Mayor Heidemann opened communication for those who would like to speak 

 

Terry Smith of 3804 Red Oak Drive stated: I'm a registered voter, one of 15,000. I've been researching 
this for over a week since the last council meeting, and it was quite interesting, what I discovered by Mr. 
Google on everything. A little background, I wanted the compliment Mr. Hart for doing an excellent job 

                                            30



 
 

with the detail on this budget, so we knew what was going on. Mr. Mayor, I look up to you and the years 
of experience and age. You are much older than I am, and you've got a life experience, which is excellent. 
I look at the council experience of being on this council, devotion and volunteering time, effort, and 
concern for the people in this community. I appreciate our city manager outlining, like I said, in depth, the 
budget and suggestions of improvement. I was surprised that he recommended that you all needed 
additional training and understanding of what your job description is. Two council members have five 
years each on the council. You have six, another council member has two, the other one has one 
collectively. I would think that you wouldn't have your positions, if you didn't know what you're doing. 
So, it's kind of a surprise, kind of shocked me as such, and it was really a recommendation. The citizens 
of this community are at a difficult time. As you might know, I'm in the exhibit trade show business, 
6,000 people in one company didn't get laid off or furloughed, they were fired, completely lost their 
income so these guys are 55-56 years old. That's all we've ever known, is that industry. CES, which is a 
Consumer Electronics Show has been cancelled. It's one of the biggest revenue streams of the tradeshow 
industry. It's one of the big boys. All other things, yeah like dominoes. It affected everybody in the 
industry, so they're without money. They don't have anything. The $1200 given by the government, gone. 
That lasted about a week, as you may all know. You only allowed three minutes; I understand my 
Constitutional rights are only three minutes. Okay, thank you. 
 

There were no other comments. 

 
MOTION made by Council Member Garber to approve an ordinance adopting the fiscal year 2020-2021 
Annual Budget, and appropriating resources for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020, and ending 
September 30, 2021. Mayor Pro Tem Burke seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

2. Consider and act on an Ordinance levying and adopting the tax rate for the 2020-2021 Fiscal 
Year. 

City Manager Hart outlined the tax rate and recommendation in the budget of .57817 cents for the 
tax rate to cover both operations and maintenance and for the debt service.  
 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to move to approve an ordinance that the property tax rate be 
increased by the adoption of a tax rate .57817 per $100 assessed valuation, which is effectively a 6.08% 
increase in the tax rate. Council Member Pickens seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. Consider and act on an Ordinance approving the 2020 Tax Rolls and accepting the anticipated 

collection rate of 100 percent for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending 
September 30, 2021. 

 
 

                                            31



 
 

This was covered by Mrs. Bunselmeyer on roughly the tax roll of $2.46 billion and you are assuming a 
100% collection rate. The recommendation is accepting roll from DCAD and assuming 100% collection 
rate. 
 

MOTION made by Council Member Henderson to approve the ordinance, accept the 2020 tax 
roll, and accept the submission on the certified collection rate of 100% for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2020, and ending September 30, 2021. Council Member Pickens seconded 

the motion. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

4. Consider vote to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the city’s annual budget for FY 
2020-2021. 

MOTION made by Council Member Garber to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the city's 
annual budget for fiscal year 2020-2021. Mayor Pro Tem Burke seconded the motion.  
 

AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Burke thanked the staff for the clarity of the budget. For our residents, I appreciate this a 
hard time for many people. If I were in their position, I might be questioning why my representative was 
raising my tax rate. We are doing that because we think it is in the long-term best interest of this community. 
We feel we have an opportunity to borrow money at a historically low rate, to improve our downtown area, 
and in a way that this kind of once in a generation, I think, based on opportunities we have with possibly 
DCTA and with the County; to create a transit-oriented development  (TOD) with the timing we've got with 
open land surrounding City Hall with our partnership and the chance to expand our partnership with NCTC. 
I think it's an opportunity that we had to seize. It's not something that we started planning a few weeks or a 
few months ago, it's a result of a multiyear effort, feedback from the community, and a lot of thoughtful 
deliberation of the other members of the Council and our great staff and city manager. If anybody has any 
questions about why we are doing it, why now is the time we needed to do it, there are answers to those 
questions. You may not agree with those answers, but there are answers, and any of us are happy to answer 
them. So, if you've got them, you don't have to Google it, you can reach out to us, and we will answer them. 
Thank you. 
  
Council Member Garber thanked the staff for getting them through this year.  With House Bill 2, the state 
legislature that went on record saying that these next four years, and we're two years into it, were going to 
be the most challenging legislative sessions for cities, in the most restrictive way, and we still have many 

                                            32



 
 

things in the air. You know, potentially, where our sales tax will go and who knows what will happen 
through this next session. The presented budget, the way it was presented with all those what if's, I thought 
was excellent. I could not have been prouder, so thank you. 
  
Council Member Henderson echoed the sentiments of Burke and Garber, stating this year was amazing. 
The first year I didn't understand anything, and this year I had a million questions; thank you, Lee Ann, for 
not making me feel like they were not important, and I appreciate your time. I also appreciate Mr. Hart for 
the time he took to educate me on the budget process. Thank you all very much, and I would also thank 
Shea for your time today with the cyber protection. 
  
Council Member Pickens echoed her appreciation for the staff and hard work they have put into the budget. 
Before I sat on Council, I guess I took for granted all the work it takes to run a city, and I have had a crash 
course, this is number two for me. The first one, like, Tina, I was just trying to understand. I'm getting a 
better grasp on it, understand the complexities of it. Through COVID, you powered through and didn't let 
it stop you, and our city operated, like the fine machine that it is, and Mr. Hart, we must all appreciate your 
time and all your effort that went into this. 
  
Mr. Hart thanked the City Council and how this goes back to the strategic plan and the workshops held in 
May. It makes the process easier for us. We have some exciting opportunities coming up at a really fast 
pace. 
  
Mayor Heidemann said there is no I in a team. You have a great staff, a great Council, and we are doing 
this to benefit Corinth's residents. Corinth is a great place to be and a great place to live. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene into closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Closed Session convened at 5:47 P.M.  

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

a. Update on internal control review. 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

a. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs 

Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, 

Texas (F) 

 
b.  Being 10.49 acres of land located in the J. WALTON SURVEY, Abstract No. 1389, City of 

Corinth, Denton County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Anchor City 

Investments, LLC, by the deed recorded in Instrument No. 2006-90896, of the Deed Records of 

Denton County, Texas (D) 

 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 

                                            33



 
 

discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer 
or employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 

 

b. Project Daylight 
 

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed Closed Session at 6:04 P.M. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED 

SESSION ITEMS. 

MOTION made by Mayor Pro Tem Burke to approve the City Manager enter into and closing the 
purchase of a piece of real property, consisting of approximately 10.49 acres, currently owned by 
Anchor Bay properties for the purchase price of $3,198,611.00, plus closing costs. Council Member 
Garber seconded the motion. 

 
AYES:  Garber, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 6:39 P.M. 

 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2020.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                            34



   
    CONSENT ITEM    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Amherst Subdivision Development Agreement
Submitted For: Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator 
Submitted By: Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and approve execution of Development Agreement for certain Park and Trail Improvements within the
Amherst Subdivision Development on the west side of Parkridge Drive, south of Warwick Drive.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Developer is proposing to file the final plat prior to the completion of the previously approved Park and Trail
Improvements. This Developer Agreement will ensure the construction of a six-foot-wide hard scape
trail, placement of six park benches, two swing sets, and the installation of the swing sets fall area.

RECOMMENDATION
The parkland and trail will help to provide recreational opportunities for both this development and link the
single-family residential developments in this area. The hard scape trail will also provide the desired future
connectivity for the City's trail system and other public parks within the City. Additionally, the swing set and park
bench improvements will require minimal maintenance for the City, while providing recreational opportunities for
families and residents. Therefore, staff recommends the approval of this Development Agreement.

Attachments
Amherst Development Agreement 

                                            35



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 WHEREAS, Developer Name Click here to enter.  , (the “Developer”), whose business 

address is Address Click here to enter.   is the owner and Developer of real property located in 

the corporate limits of the City of Corinth being described as Legal Description Click here to enter.  , 

an addition to the City of Corinth, Texas (the “Development”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, Developer wishes to enter into this Agreement with the City of Corinth, 

Texas (the “City”) to provide for the construction of certain Public Improvements generally 

described as Trails and Park Improvements. and as further described in the “Construction 

Documents" copies of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof, (the 

“Construction Documents”)  which are necessitated by and will serve the Development; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Developer will provide to City a detailed cost analysis of the Public 

Improvements broken down into categories for Trails and Park Improvements, which is attached 

to this Agreement as Exhibit “B”; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this Agreement is required to ensure that the Public Improvements are 

constructed in accordance with the provisions of the City’s Unified Development Code (the 

“UDC”), applicable ordinances, design criteria and Engineering Standards Manuals and the 

Construction Documents which were approved by the City and are on file in the Public Works 

Department, which may be amended with the written approval of the City Engineer or his 

designated representative (the “Director of Public Works”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, Developer understands and agrees that Developer is responsible for and has 

retained at its sole expense, the Developer’s Engineer to design the Public Improvements in 

accordance with the Construction Documents, taking into consideration the specific site conditions 

that may impact the Public Improvements; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Developer recognizes that City has an interest in ensuring that the Public 

Improvements, which will, upon completion and acceptance by City, become public property, are 

properly constructed and paid for in accordance with the approved Construction Documents;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, Developer and City (the “Parties”) in consideration of their 

promises and covenants contained herein agree as follows: 

 

 

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

 

All of the recitals in the Preamble are incorporated herein. 

 

SECTION 2.  COVENANTS OF DEVELOPER. 

 

A. Developer shall ensure the construction of  the Public Improvements in accordance with 

 the approved Construction Documents, the UDC, design criteria, engineering standards 

 manuals and other City ordinances, and all other rules, regulations and local, state, or 

                                            36



                                                Page 2 of 26 

 

 federal laws (the "Standards"); and complete the Public Improvements no later than two 

 (2) years following the date of plat approval.  

 

B. Developer shall ensure all work on the Public Improvements in a good and workman like 

 manner and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The City Engineer shall decide all 

 questions, which arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials furnished, work

 performed, and the interpretation of the Construction Documents related to Public

 Improvements and may reject any work not performed in accordance with the 

 Construction Documents. Trails along Block 3, Lots 8 through 13 shall be of consistent 

 grade as to ensure fluid connections between each section of installed trail. 

 

C. Developer shall construct, or have constructed, the Improvements described herein or made 

part of this Agreement in the form of approved Construction Documents. The Developer 

and its surety warrant that the Public Improvements will be free from defects in materials 

and workmanship and that they will pay to remedy same for a period of two (2) years after 

the completion of the Public Improvements and final acceptance by City. This warranty 

shall not constitute a limitation on the duty to remedy latent defects in construction that 

were not known at the time of final acceptance or within said two (2) year warranty period.  

 

D. Developer shall pay all claimants supplying labor and material to it and/or a subcontractor 

in the prosecution of the work provided in said contract between Developer and Contractor. 

 

E.  Any work done or materials used without suitable inspection by City may be ordered 

removed, and replaced at Developer’s expense. The City Engineer shall perform periodic 

inspections of the work and shall perform a final inspection prior to final acceptance by 

City and an inspection within ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the two year period 

from the date of final acceptance of the work by City. 

 

F. Developer agrees to: 

 

1. Require its Contractor to give 48 hours’ notice to City’s Inspectors of 

intent to commence construction so that City inspection personnel will 

be available; and to require the Contractor to allow the construction to 

be subject to inspection at any and all times by City inspection forces, 

and not to install or relocate any sanitary sewer, storm drain, or water 

pipe unless a City inspector is present and gives consent to proceed, and 

to make such laboratory tests of materials being used as may be required 

by City; and 

 

2. To delay connections of buildings to service lines of sewer and water 

mains constructed under this Agreement until the sewer and water mains 

and service lines have been completed to the satisfaction of the City 

Engineer. 

 

G. City shall not be responsible for any costs that may be incurred by Developer in the 

relocation of any utilities that are or may be in conflict with any of the Public Improvements 

to be installed hereunder. 

                                            37



                                                Page 3 of 26 

 

 

H. Developer agrees to provide, at its expense, all necessary rights of way and easements 

across property owned by Developer and required for the construction of the current and 

future improvements provided for by this Agreement. 

 

I. Developer shall make all of Developer’s and Contractor’s records, including financial, 

related to the construction of the Public Improvements available for inspection by City. 

 

J. Developer agrees that City’s specifications for public and private improvements are 

minimum standards only and Developer shall retain an engineer for purposes of review of 

City specifications.  If, in the engineer's opinion, additional technical design requirements 

(in addition to City specifications) are required to design the Public Improvements 

sufficient for local conditions, Developer will include such design requirements in the 

specifications for the Public Improvements. 

 

SECTION 3.   BREACH 

 

A. Upon breach of this Agreement by Developer or failure of Contractor to allow for 

inspection, to test materials furnished, to satisfactorily repair, remove or replace, if so 

directed, rejected, unauthorized or condemned work or materials, or to follow other request 

or orders of the City Engineer, the Director shall notify Developer and Contractor of such 

breach or failure and may suspend inspections of such work, put a hold on construction or 

withhold building permits until such breach or failure is remedied.  If such breach or failure 

is not remedied to the satisfaction of the City Engineer City shall have no obligation under 

this Agreement to approve or accept the Public Improvements and City may withhold, 

suspend, or revoke any permits or other approvals for the Development until such matter 

is remedied to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works. City also is entitled to 

pursue all other remedies at law or in equity. 

 

B. A breach includes: 

 

1.   Developer's failure to construct the Public Improvements as required to comply 

 with the City Standards and approved Construction Documents. 

 

2. Developer's failure to provide the City with a complete set of Construction Plans 

for the improvements, certified "as built" by the engineer responsible for preparing 

the approved Plans; 

 

3. Developer's failure to comply with its warranty obligations that the Public 

Improvements will comply with the Standards and Construction Documents during 

the maintenance period; 

 

4. Developer's failure to provide additional financial security within 30 days after 

notice and demand; 

 

                                            38



                                                Page 4 of 26 

 

5. The acquisition of the Development or a portion of the Development by the issuer 

of the financial security or other creditor through foreclosure or an assignment or 

conveyance in lieu of foreclosure; and/or 

 

 6.    Developer's failure to comply with any other material provision of this Agreement. 

 

C. City may utilize the Developer’s financial security submitted for the Public Improvements 

if, at the end of two years from the date of approval of the Final Plat, the Public 

Improvements have not been completed and accepted. 

 

D. City may utilize Developer’s financial security to cause the completion of the construction 

of the Public Improvements or to cause the payment of costs for construction of same 

before the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the Final Plat, if Developer 

breaches this Agreement, becomes insolvent, bankrupt, or fails to pay costs of construction.  

 

E. City may utilize Developer's financial security if the Developer is in breach of this 

Agreement. 

 

F. In the event that the Public Improvements are not constructed to meet the Subdivision 

Standards and Plans, and the required Security has expired, the Developer shall not 

transfer, or convey any of the lots in the Subdivision until sufficient Security has been 

posted with the City for the completion of the construction and/or correction and repair of 

defects in materials or workmanship. 

 

SECTION 4.  INSURANCE 

 

A. Contractor shall provide for insurance in form and in substance that meets the City’s 

standard insurance requirements for public works projects, with such insurance primary to 

City, and noncontributory as to the City, and the City, its officers and employees shall be 

named as additional insured with appropriate waivers of subrogation in favor of the City.  

These insurance requirements are attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “D”, 

“Insurance Requirements”. 

 

SECTION 5.   FINANCIAL SECURITY 

 

A. To secure the Developer's obligations to design and construct the Public Improvements, 

the Developer shall provide financial security to the City in the amount equal to 110 percent 

of the total costs in the Public Improvement Cost Analysis set forth in Exhibit "B". Bonds 

shall be provided on the City approved forms attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “C”.  This financial security shall ensure completion of the Public Improvements 

in accordance with the approved Construction Documents and Ordinances of the City, in 

one of the following methods.   

 

1. Developer shall execute a performance bond to ensure completion of the 

Improvements and a payment bond insuring against claims from Contractors, 

suppliers and subcontractors.  Each of the bonds shall be provided in the amount of 

                                            39



                                                Page 5 of 26 

 

110 percent of the Public Improvement Cost analysis in Exhibit “B” and shall name 

the City as a dual obligee; or  

 

2.   Developer shall provide an irrevocable Letter of Credit from a federally insured 

bank authorized to do business in the State of Texas and approved by the City in 

the form provided by the City and on Bank Letterhead; during this Agreement, the 

City Attorney may revise the standard form letter of credit as the City reasonably 

considers acceptable and necessary to secure the performance of the Developer's 

obligations and payment of contractors, suppliers, and subcontractors; or 

 

3. If the requirements for an escrow deposit, as provided in Section 3.04.05.F. of the 

UDC, are satisfied, Developer may post cash escrow and provide an executed 

escrow agreement to secure its payment and performance bond requirements set 

forth herein. 

 

B. If  Developer elects to provide performance and payment bonds, the bonds shall be 

executed by a corporate surety authorized to do business in the state of Texas in accordance 

with Chapter 2253 of the Texas Government Code and shall be on City’s standard form 

and shall contain a local resident agent for service of process.    

 

C.   The Maintenance Bond shall be equal to 110% of the Public Improvement Cost Analysis 

attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. The City will release the Financial Security within 30 days 

following acceptance of the Public Improvements by the City if the maintenance bond is 

provided by Developer and approved by City.  If the Maintenance Bond is not provided or 

approved by the City, the Improvements will not be accepted, and no permits shall be 

issued.  In the event that claims are pending at the time that Developer provides the required 

maintenance bond, City shall not be obligated to release either a Letter of Credit or Cash 

Escrow which serves as Developer’s final security pursuant to this section. 

   

D. If, at any time, the City Engineer determines that the cost of constructing the Public 

Improvements may exceed the financial security, within thirty (30) days after notice, the 

Developer shall provide additional security in an amount equal to the additional estimated 

cost. 

 

 

SECTION 6.  AMENITIES  

 

A. City and Developer recognize that the Development may incorporate a number of unique 

 amenities and aesthetic improvements such as ponds, aesthetic lakes, unique landscaping, 

 walls, and may incorporate specialty signage and accessory facilities. Developer agrees to 

 be solely responsible for the construction and maintenance of all such aesthetic or specialty

  items  such as walls, vegetation, signage, landscaping, street furniture, and pond and lake 

 improvements until such responsibility is turned over to a homeowners’ association or 

 property owners’ association, as applicable, which has been properly formed with which 

 has adopted regulations that will ensure the association maintains the assets necessary to 

 perform continued maintenance of such amenities. 

 

                                            40



                                                Page 6 of 26 

 

B. Developer may provide unique amenities within public right-of-way, such as landscaping, 

irrigation, lighting, etc., for the enhancement of the development. Developer agrees to 

maintain these amenities until such responsibility is turned over to a homeowners’ 

association or property owners’ association, as applicable, which has been properly formed 

with which has adopted regulations that will ensure the association maintains the assets 

necessary to perform continued maintenance of such amenities.  DEVELOPER 

UNDERSTANDS THAT CITY SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE 

REPLACEMENT OF THESE AMENITIES UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES 

AND FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS CITY 

FROM ANY AND ALL DAMAGES, LOSS OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND 

WHATSOEVER BY REASON  OF INJURY TO PROPERTY OR THIRD 

PERSON OCCASIONED BY ITS USE OF THE PUBLIC EASEMENTS OR 

RIGHT-OF-WAY WITH REGARD TO THESE IMPROVEMENTS AND 

DEVELOPER SHALL, AT HIS OWN COST AND EXPENSE, DEFEND AND 

PROTECT CITY AGAINST ALL SUCH CLAIMS AND DEMANDS. 

 

 

SECTION 7. RETAINAGE: FINAL PAYMENTS; ACCEPTANCE 

 

A. As security for the faithful completion of the Public Improvements, Developer agree that 

Developer shall retain 10 percent of the total dollar amount of the contract price until final 

approval or acceptance of the Public Improvements by City. Developer shall thereafter pay 

Contractor the retainage, but such payment shall be made only after Contractor has 

furnished to Developer and City satisfactory evidence including an affidavit that all 

indebtedness has been paid, that all  indebtedness connected with the work and all sums 

of money due for labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures or machinery furnished for and used 

in the performance of the work have been paid or otherwise satisfied.  In addition, if surety 

bonds are provided as financial security, Contractor shall provide Developer a consent to 

final payment from the payment bond surety, and shall provide City a copy.  

 

B. Upon proper completion of the Public Improvements in accordance with this Agreement, 

and subject to the appropriate approval action by the City Council, City agrees to accept 

the Public Improvements. Upon completion and final acceptance of the Public 

Improvements by City, the Public Improvements shall become the property of City free 

and clear of all liens, claims, charges, or encumbrances of any kind. If, after acceptance of 

the Public Improvements, any claim, lien, charge or encumbrance is made, or found  to 

exist, against the Public Improvements, or land dedicated to City, to which they are affixed, 

Developer shall, upon notice by City, promptly cause such claim, lien, charge or 

encumbrance to be satisfied and released or promptly post a bond with City in the amount 

of such claim, lien, charge or encumbrance, in favor of City, in a form acceptable to the 

City, to insure payment of such claim, lien, charge or encumbrance.  

 

C. Prior to final acceptance of the Public Improvements, Developer shall provide to the City 

one PDF copy of the Record Drawings and a CD in CAD 2000 or later format, showing 

the improvements as actually constructed. The drawings will be stamped and signed by a 

registered professional civil engineer. In addition, Developer shall provide electronic files 

showing the grading plan and drainage area map; the plan and profile of the sanitary sewer, 

                                            41



                                                Page 7 of 26 

 

storm drain, roadway and waterline; all lot lines, and tie into the City of Corinth GIS 

Monuments. 

 

SECTION 8.  CITY’S APPROVAL OF PLANS 

 

A. Approval by the City Engineer or other City employee of any plans, designs or 

specifications submitted by Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall not constitute or 

be deemed to be a release of the responsibility and liability of Developer, its engineer, 

employees, officers or agents for the accuracy and competency of their design and 

specifications. Further approval shall not be deemed to be an assumption of such 

responsibility and liability by City for any defect in the design and specifications prepared 

by the Engineer, its officers, agents, or employees, it being the intent of the parties that 

approval by the City Engineer signifies City’s approval on only the general design concept 

of the improvements to be constructed.   

 

B. IN THIS CONNECTION, DEVELOPER SHALL FOR A PERIOD OF TEN (10) 

YEARS AFTER THE ACCEPTANCE BY CITY OF THE PUBLIC 

IMPROVEMENTS, RELEASE, DEFEND, , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 

HARMLESS CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, SERVANTS AND EMPLOYEES, 

FROM ANY LOSS, DAMAGE, LIABILITY OR EXPENSE ON ACCOUNT OF 

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY AND INJURIES, INCLUDING DEATH, TO ANY AND 

ALL PERSONS WHICH MAY ARISE OUT OF ANY DEFECT, DEFICIENCY OR 

NEGLIGENCE OF THE ENGINEER’S DESIGNS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

INCORPORATED INTO ANY IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED IN 

ACCORDANCE THEREWITH, AND DEVELOPER SHALL DEFEND AT HIS 

OWN EXPENSE, ANY SUITS OR OTHER PROCEEDINGS BROUGHT 

AGAINST CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES, OR 

ANY OF THEM, ON ACCOUNT THEREOF, TO PAY ALL EXPENSES AND 

SATISFY ALL JUDGMENTS WHICH MAY BE INCURRED BY OR RENDERED 

AGAINST THEM OR ANY OF THEM IN CONNECTION HEREWITH.  THIS 

SECTION SHALL SURVIVE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR 

ACCEPTANCE OF THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS BY THE CITY. 

 

SECTION 9.   INDEMNIFICATION 

 

DEVELOPER COVENANTS AND AGREES TO WAIVE ALL CLAIMS, TO 

RELEASE, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS AND DEFEND CITY, ITS 

OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL 

CLAIMS OR SUITS FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE OR LOSS AND/OR PERSONAL 

INJURY, INCLUDING DEATH, TO ANY AND ALL PERSONS, OF WHATSOEVER 

KIND OR CHARACTER, WHETHER REAL OR ASSERTED, (INCLUDING, WITHOUT 

LIMITATION, REASONABLE FEES AND EXPENSES OF ATTORNEYS, EXPERT 

WITNESSES AND OTHER CONSULTANTS), ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION 

WITH, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, 

OCCUPANCY, USE, EXISTENCE OR LOCATION OF THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT 

OR IMPROVEMENTS, AND SHALL FURTHER BE LIABLE FOR INJURY OR 

DAMAGE TO CITY PROPERTY, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH ANY 

                                            42



                                                Page 8 of 26 

 

AND ALL ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF DEVELOPER, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, 

EMPLOYEES, CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS, LICENSEES, INVITEES, OR 

TRESPASSERS. 

 

DEVELOPER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY THE CITY, ITS OFFICERS AND 

EMPLOYEES FOR ANY DAMAGES, CLAIMS OR LIABILITIES ARISING FROM THE 

NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, OR OF THE CONCURRENT NEGLIGENT ACT OR 

OMISSION, OF THE CITY, ITS OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES.  THE EXPRESS 

INTENTION OF THIS INDEMNITY IS FOR THE DEVELOPER IS TO INDEMNIFY 

AND PROTECT THE CITY FROM ITS OWN NEGLIGENCE, WHETHER THAT 

NEGLIGENCE IS THE SOLE OR CONCURRING CAUSE OF THE INJURY, DEATH 

OR DAMAGE, OR WHETHER THE NEGLIGENCE IS ACTIVE NEGLIGENCE, 

PASSIVE NEGLIGENCE OR GROSS NEGLIGENCE.  DEVELOPER’S OBLIGATION 

UNDER THIS SECTION AND SECTION 8.B. SHALL SURVIVE THE TERM OF THIS 

AGREEMENT.  THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE TERMINATION OF THIS 

AGREEMENT AND/OR ACCEPTANCE OF THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS BY THE 

CITY. 

 

SECTION 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  

 

A. Conflicts.  The provisions of this Agreement shall control over any conflicting provisions 

of any Contract between Developer and Contractor as to the construction of the Public 

Improvements. 

 

B. Rough Proportionality Satisfied.  Developer acknowledges and agrees that there is 

reasonable nexus between the demands created by Developer and the Public 

Improvements, and that the costs associated with the construction and dedication of land 

for the Public Improvements is roughly proportional to the benefits received and the 

burdens imposed by the Development. Developer shall indemnify and hold City harmless 

against any claim by it or others claiming through it, that the required Public Improvements 

and associated dedication of land are unlawful exactions.  

 

C. Venue/Nonwaiver.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be enforceable in Denton 

County, Texas, and if legal action is necessary in connection therewith, exclusive venue 

shall lie in Denton County, Texas. The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be 

construed in accordance with the laws and court decisions of the State of Texas. The failure 

of either party to insist, in any one or more instances, on the performance of any of the 

terms of this Agreement, or to exercise any of its rights, shall not be construed as a waiver 

or relinquishment of such term or right with respect to further performance. 

 

D. Covenants Survive Termination.  The covenants in this Agreement shall run with the land 

and shall be binding upon all successors, heirs and assignees of the Developer and City. 

 

E. Payment of Fees.  Prior to City’s final acceptance of the Public Improvements for the 

Development, Developer shall pay all applicable fees, including the total cost of street 

signs. 

 

                                            43



                                                Page 9 of 26 

 

SECTION 11.  SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 

A. The Developer shall ensure the construction of a 6-foot-wide hard scape trail along the 

northside of lots on Lavinia Drive, Block 3, Lots 8-13 as depicted in Exhibit B-1.  

 

B. The Developer shall ensure the construction and placement of six (6) park benches with 

protective coating on concrete pads and a total of two (2) swing sets, one for tots and one 

for older children. This equipment is subject to the approval of the Public Works Director. 

 

C. The Developer shall ensure the installation of the swing sets fall area with rubber mulch 

and the fall are boundaries depicted in Exhibit B-3. This equipment is subject to the 

approval of the Public Works Director prior to installation. 

 

D. The Developer will ensure that the two (2) swing set frames have a powder coating. This 

equipment is subject to the approval of the Public Works Director prior to installation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEVELOPER:     

Company Name:   Click here to enter text.   

Authorized Signatory Printed:   Click here to enter text.   

Signature: ________________________________Title:   Click here to enter text.   

Address:   Click here to enter text.   

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared _______________, known to me to be the 

person whose name is subscribed to the forgoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same 

for the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, THIS _____ day of _____________, 20__. 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas  
My commission expires: ______________ 

 

             

                                            44



                                                Page 10 of 26 

 

ATTEST:       CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS 

_____________________________   ____________________________ 

Interim City Secretary     City Manager 

 

APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 20___. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            45



                                                Page 11 of 26 

 

Site Location Map 

 
 

 

 

 

                                            46



                                                Page 12 of 26 

 

EXHIBIT A  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            47



                                                Page 13 of 26 

 

 

 

Swing Set Fall Area Improvements 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            48



                                                Page 14 of 26 

 

 

 

Trail Layout 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            49



                                                Page 15 of 26 

 

 

 

Park Amenities Plan 

 

 

                                            50



                                                Page 16 of 26 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            51



                                                Page 17 of 26 

 

 
Trail Improvement Cost Analysis 

 
 

                                            52



                                                Page 18 of 26 

 

 

 

 

Playground and Park Improvements Cost Analysis 

 

                                            53



                                                Page 19 of 26 

 

 
 

 

 

                                            54



                                                Page 20 of 26 

 

 
 

 

 

                                            55



                                                Page 21 of 26 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            56



                                                Page 22 of 26 

 

 

Irrevocable Letter of Credit 

 

 
 

                                            57



                                                Page 23 of 26 

 

 
 

 

                                            58



                                                Page 24 of 26 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

 
 

                                            59



                                                Page 25 of 26 

 

Certificate of Insurance

 

                                            60



                                                Page 26 of 26 

 

 

                                            61



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Notice of Intent
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: Yes Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development 

Infrastructure Development 
Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM
Consider adoption of a resolution directing publication of notice of intention to issue certificates of obligation to
provide funds for street improvements, municipal drainage improvements, and water and sewer improvements; and
resolving other matters relating to the subject.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
This provides the Notice of Intention to Issue City of Corinth Certificates of Obligation, Series 2021, as required by
state law.  To issue the certificates for the Capital Improvement Program for the current fiscal year, the City
Council must adopt the attached "Intent to Sell" resolution at least 30 days prior to the sale.  The notice will be
published on November 24 and December 1, 2020. 

The certificates are being sold for an amount not to exceed $5 million in bond proceeds for 1) constructing and
improving streets, roads, alleys and sidewalks, and related utility relocation, drainage, signalization, landscaping,
lighting and signage and including acquiring land and interests in land therefor; 2) constructing and equipping
municipal drainage improvements, including flood control and flood mitigation improvements and acquiring land
therefor; 3) constructing, acquiring, installing and equipping additions, extensions and improvements to the City’s
waterworks and sewer system; and 4) paying legal, fiscal, engineering and architectural fees in connection with
these projects. 

The projects include: Lake Sharon Extension/Wetlands Drainage, North Corinth Street, NCTC Way, Main
Street,  Agora Way, Lynchburg Drainage.

The timeline for the issue is:

                                            62



  

 

November 19, 2020 Council adopts "Intent to Sell" resolution

November 24, 2020 1st Notice of Intent Published

December 1, 2020 2nd Notice of Intent Published

December 28, 2020-
January 1, 2021

Rating Conference Call/Meetings

January 13, 2021 Receive Ratings & Insurance Bids

January 21, 2021 Receive Pricing

January 21, 2021 Council Passes Ordinance Authorizing Issuance of Certificate of Obligation's

February 18, 2021 Certificate Closing & Delivery of Funds to the City

RECOMMENDATION
Move approval of the resolution directing publication of notice of intention to issue certificates of obligation not to
exceed $5 million to provide funds for street improvements, municipal drainage improvements, and water and
sewer improvements; and resolving other matters relating to the subject.
 

Attachments
Resolution 

                                            63



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE 
OF INTENTION TO ISSUE COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

 

WHEREAS, this City Council deems it advisable to give notice of intention to issue certificates 
of obligation of the City of Corinth, Texas, as hereinafter provided; and 

WHEREAS, it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed, was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CORINTH, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a form of the Notice of Intention to issue Combination 
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, the form and substance of which is hereby adopted and 
approved. 

Section 2.  The City Secretary shall cause said notice to be published in substantially the form 
attached hereto, in a newspaper, as defined by Subchapter C, Chapter 2051, Texas Government Code, of 
general circulation in the area of said City, once a week for two consecutive weeks, the date of the first 
publication thereof to be before the 45th day before the date tentatively set for the adoption of the 
ordinances authorizing the issuance of such certificates of obligation as shown in said notice. 

 
Section 3. The City Secretary shall cause said notice to be posted in substantially the form 

attached hereto, on the City’s internet website for at least 45 days before the date tentatively set for the 
adoption of the ordinances authorizing the issuance of such certificates of obligation as shown in said 
notice. 

 
Section 4.  That all costs to be reimbursed pursuant to this Resolution will be preliminary 

expenditures or capital expenditures; the proposed Certificates of Obligation shall be issued within 18 
months of the later of (i) the date the original expenditures are paid or (ii) the date on which the property, 
with respect to which such expenditures were made, is placed in service; and the foregoing 
notwithstanding, the Certificates of Obligation will not be issued pursuant to this Resolution on a date that 
is more than three years after the date any expenditure which is to be reimbursed is paid. 

Section 5.  The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor, City Manager, City 
Secretary, Director of Finance and all other officers, employees and agents of the City, in consultation 
with the City Attorney, if necessary, to do and perform all such acts and to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver in the name and on behalf of the City such documents, agreements, certificates and other 
instruments, whether or not mentioned in this Resolution, as may be necessary or desirable in order to 
carry out the terms, provisions and actions provided for in this Resolution and in connection with the 
issuance of the Certificates of Obligation 

 
Section 6.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 

(Execution page follows.) 

                                            64



 

 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE      . 

 

ATTEST: 

  
Mayor 

 

       
City Secretary 

 

 

         [CITY SEAL] 

                                            65



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE 
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, at its meeting to 
commence at 5:45 P.M. on January 21, 2021, at its regular meeting place in the City Hall, 3300 Corinth 
Parkway, Corinth, Texas, or telephonically at the dial-in number and access code published on the City’s 
website in the event such meeting may not be held in person, tentatively proposes to adopt an ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of interest bearing certificates of obligation, in one or more series, in an amount 
not to exceed $3,500,000, for paying all or a portion of the City's contractual obligations incurred in 
connection with: 
 

(i) constructing and improving streets, roads, alleys and sidewalks, and related utility 
relocation, drainage, signalization, landscaping, lighting and signage and including 
acquiring land and interests in land therefor;  
 

(ii) constructing and equipping municipal drainage improvements, including flood control 
and flood mitigation improvements and acquiring land therefor;  

 
(iii) constructing, acquiring, installing and equipping additions, extensions and improvements 

to the City’s waterworks and sewer system; and  

(iv) paying legal, fiscal, engineering and architectural fees in connection with these projects. 
 
The City proposes to provide for the payment of such certificates of obligation from the levy and 
collection of ad valorem taxes in the City as provided by law, and from a limited pledge of surplus 
revenues of the City's waterworks and sewer system, remaining after payment of all operation and 
maintenance expenses thereof, and all debt service, reserve, and other requirements in connection with all 
of the City's revenue bonds or other obligations (now or hereafter outstanding), which are payable from 
all or any part of the net revenues of the City's waterworks and sewer system.  The certificates of 
obligation are to be issued, and this notice is given, under and pursuant to the provisions of Texas Local 
Government Code, Subchapter C of Chapter 271 (“Chapter 271”). 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 271, the following information has been provided by the 
City: 
 
(a) The principal amount of all outstanding debt obligations of the City is $55,510,000;  

 
(b) The current combined principal and interest required to pay all outstanding debt obligations of the 

City on time and in full is $73,161,256;  
 

(c) The maximum principal amount of the certificates of obligation to be authorized is $3,500,000; 
 

(d) The estimated combined principal and interest required to pay the certificates of obligation to be 
authorized on time and in full is $4,124,198.50;  
 

(e) The estimated interest rate for the certificates of obligation to be authorized is 4.00%; and 
 

(f) The maximum maturity date of the certificates of obligation to be authorized is February 15, 2041. 
 
The City has not designated any of its outstanding debt as self-supporting for purposes of Chapter 271. 

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS  

                                            66



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    6.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Boat & RV Ordinance Amendment
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Beadle, Director  Submitted By: George Marshall, Engineer
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on an ordinance of the City of Corinth, Texas amending Section 71.07, Parking Certain Vehicles
in Residential Areas, of Chapter 71, Stopping, Standing, and Parking of Title VII, Traffic Code, of the City's Code
of Ordinances. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
On October 22, 2020 City Staff presented council an ordinance to clarify the existing regulations. Through detailed
discussion it was determined to rework the language and come back to Council at a later date. Staff and the City
Attorney has revised the language to make it clear the intention of the regulations. 
City Staff made an informal presentation to the City Council during the workshop meeting on June 20, 2019
regarding the parking of boats, recreational vehicles, and trailers on residential lots and sought guidance on any
changes to the code that may be desired. City Council wanted to ensure the residents would be aware of any
changes to the code and allow for their input. City Staff formulated a brief online survey for residents that was
hosted on mycorinth.com from November 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 to provide their opinions on the parking of
boats, R.V.’s and trailers within neighborhoods. The survey received 295 total responses and the results were posted
on mycorinth.com.

On January 9, 2020 staff presented to results to the City Council in regular session and a few residents spoke on the
item. The results of the survey illustrated the majority of the respondents were in favor of retaining the current
standards. Staff recommended amending two sections and definitions of the current regulations that have been
difficult to enforce, and City Council directed staff to work with the City Attorney to resolve the clarification. The
sections and definitions to be amended are identified below:

71.07- PARKING CERTAIN VEHICLES IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS.
 
EXISTING CODE
Subsection A
(3)
(a) A person commits an offense if, in a residential area, the person parks a passenger car, passenger van, truck
camper in combination with its carrying vehicle, watercraft loaded on a watercraft trailer, collapsible camper-trailer,
or other vehicle on a surface other than a paved or improved surface.
(b) It is an affirmative defense to prosecution for a violation of subsection (a) above that the motor home, travel
trailer, watercraft loaded on a watercraft trailer, or utility trailer is parked behind the front building line and
screened from public view.

Subsection B
Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:

IMPROVED or PAVED SURFACE. A surface that consists of materials other than dirt or grass such as, but not
                                            67



IMPROVED or PAVED SURFACE. A surface that consists of materials other than dirt or grass such as, but not
limited to, concrete, asphalt, rock, pavestone, etc. and must be attached to the primary surface. If rock is used, the
entire surface must be a minimum of four inches in depth with a retaining border surrounding the entire area of rock.

RESIDENTIAL AREA. A tract of land zoned or used for residential purposes.

PROPOSED CODE REVISION
Subsection A
(3)
(a) All automobiles, trucks, campers, camper tops, recreation vehicles, travel trailers, boat trailers and/or boats,
utility trailers or other trailers or vehicles (collectively “Vehicle(s)”) shall only be parked or stored on an improved
surface, as defined in this Section; provided however, that such Vehicle(s)s may be parked on an unimproved
surface when the Vehicle(s) is: 
  (i) located behind the front building line of the property on which the Vehicle is located; and
  (ii) screened from ordinary public view as defined in subsection (b),
 
(b) For purposes of this section, the term “screened from ordinary public view” shall be defined to mean located
behind any type of screening as allowed by the City’s fencing and screening requirements or behind a fence
authorized by the Unified Development Code (“UDC”) for Residential Areas. All screening shall be constructed per
the Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 4.02. – Fence and Screening Regulations, as amended. 
It shall not be a violation of this Section if a Vehicle(s) or a portion thereof is visible from a neighboring property
either:
 (i) above authorized screening; or
 (ii) through authorized screening;as long as the screening meets all other requirements of this Section.
...
Subsection B
Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:
 
IMPROVED or PAVED SURFACE. A surface that consists of materials other than dirt or grass such as, but not
limited to, concrete, asphalt, flagstone, pavestone, etc., which is contiguous to the primary driveway, and which is
comprised of material allowed within the Unified Development Code (UDC) Subsection 2.04. – Residential Zoning
Districts, for Driveway materials. (example - Lots less than 3 acres shall have concrete driveways and lots 3 acres
or more must have an all-weather surface) See definitions for all-weather surface in that section.

RESIDENTIAL AREA. A tract of land zoned or used for residential use as defined in the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Corinth, as amended from time to time.
 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval as presented. 

Attachments
71.01 Parking Certain Vehicles in Residential Areas - Ordinance 

                                            68

https://library.municode.com/tx/corinth/codes/unified_development_code?nodeId=S4SIFESCRE_SUBSECTION_4.02FESCRE
https://library.municode.com/tx/corinth/codes/unified_development_code?nodeId=S2ZORE_SUBSECTION_2.04REZODI
https://library.municode.com/tx/corinth/codes/unified_development_code?nodeId=S2ZORE_SUBSECTION_2.04REZODI


Ordinance No. 20-11-19-_ 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-11-19-_ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS AMENDING 

SECTION 71.07, “PARKING CERTAIN VEHICLES IN RESIDENTIAL 

AREAS”, OF CHAPTER 71, “STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING”, 

OF TITLE VII, “TRAFFIC CODE”, OF THE CITY’S CODE OF 

ORDINANCES BY AMENDING SUBSECTIONS A(3)(a) AND A(3)(b) AND 

SECTION B, “DEFINITIONS” RELATIVE TO PARKING AND  

SCREENING OF CERTAIN TYPES OF VEHICLES; PROVIDING FOR 

THE INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING FOR 

AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE 

NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR 

INTENTIONAL, KNOWING, OR RECKLESS VIOLATIONS OF THE 

ORDINANCE, AND PROVIDING THAT A FINE MAY BE ASSESSED FOR 

EACH DAY THAT A VIOLATION EXISTS; PROVIDING A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas is a home rule municipality located in Denton 
County, Texas created in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 9 of the Local Government 
Code and operating pursuant to the enabling legislation of the State of Texas and its home rule 

charter; and 
 

WHEREAS, proper parking of vehicles such as automobiles, trucks, campers, camper 
tops, recreation vehicles, travel trailers, boat trailers or boats, utility trailers or other type of trailers 

or vehicles on improved surfaces is necessary to avoid rodent and insect infestations, to mainta in 
property values and aesthetics within residential areas of the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to its police power, the City Council has authority to adopt 

ordinance that serve the public health, safety and welfare, and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council has determined it necessary to make certain amendments 

to  various subsections of  Section 71.07 “Parking Certain Vehicles In Residential Areas” of 
Chapter 71 of Title VII of the Code of Ordinances to provide clarification regarding the provision 
for parking a vehicle in an unimproved surface within the City of Corinth, to provide clarifica t ion 

regarding the definitions contained in this section; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the health, 
safety, and welfare of the citizens of Corinth to adopt the amendments to Section 71.07, “Stopping, 
Standing And Parking”, of  Title VII, “Traffic Code”, of the City’s Code of Ordinances as provided 

herein.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH, TEXAS THAT: 

  

                                            69



Ordinance No. 20-11-19-_ 

 

SECTION 1. 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

 

The above and foregoing recitals are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into the 

body of this Ordinance for all purposes. 
 

SECTION 2. 

AMENDMENT 

 

2.01 That Subsections A(3)(a) and A(3)(b) of  Section 71.07, “Parking Certain Vehicles In 
Residential Areas”, of Chapter 71, “Stopping, Standing And Parking”, of Title VII, “Traffic Code”,   
is hereby repealed  in its entirety and a new section 71.07A(3)(a) and A(3)(b) are hereby adopted 

and shall be and read as follows: 
 

 

§ 71.07 – PARKING CERTAIN VEHICLES IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS 

 

(A)  
… 

(3)(a)  All  automobiles, trucks, campers, camper tops, recreation vehicles, travel trailers, 
boat trailers and/or boats, utility trailers or other trailers or vehicles (collective ly 
“Vehicle(s)”) shall only be parked or stored  on an improved surface, as defined in this 

Section; provided however, that such Vehicle(s)s may be parked on an unimproved surface 
when the Vehicle(s) is:   

 
(i)  located behind the front building line of the property on which the Vehicle is located; 
and 

          (ii) screened from ordinary public view as defined in subsection (b),  
 

(b) For purposes of this section, the term “screened from ordinary public view” shall be 
defined to mean located behind any type of screening as allowed by the City’s fencing and 
screening requirements or behind a fence authorized by the Unified Development Code 

(“UDC”) for Residential Areas. All screening shall be constructed per the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) Section 4.02. – Fence and Screening Regulations, as amended.   

 
It shall not be a violation of this Section if a Vehicle(s) or a portion thereof is visible from 
a neighboring property either:  

 
(i) above authorized screening; or  

(ii) through authorized screening; 
as long as the screening meets all other requirements of this Section. 
… 

 
2.02.  That Subsection B, “Definitions” of Section 71.07, “Parking Certain Vehicles In Residentia l 

Areas”, of Chapter 71, “Stopping, Standing And Parking”, of Title VII, “Traffic Code”,  is hereby 

                                            70

https://library.municode.com/tx/corinth/codes/unified_development_code?nodeId=S4SIFESCRE_SUBSECTION_4.02FESCRE


Ordinance No. 20-11-19-_ 

 

amended so that the following definitions shall be and read in their entirety as follows, shall be 
placed in alphabetical order, and all other definitions not expressly amended below shall remain  

 
in full force and effect without amendment:   

 
“(B) Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:  

 

IMPROVED or PAVED SURFACE. A surface that consists of materials other than dirt or 
grass such as, but not limited to, concrete, asphalt, flagstone, pavestone, etc., which is  contiguous 

to the primary driveway, and which is comprised of material allowed within the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) Subsection 2.04. – Residential Zoning Districts, for Driveway 
materials. (example - Lots less than 3 acres shall have concrete driveways and lots 3 acres or more 

must have an all-weather surface) See definitions for all-weather surface in that section.  
 

 
RESIDENTIAL AREA. A tract of land zoned or used for residential use as defined in the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Corinth, as amended from time to time. 

 
SECTION 3. 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER 

 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 

provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. Ordinances, or parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall 

take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they 
are inconsistent with this Ordinance. Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim or 
lawsuit which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on this 

date of adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such 
Ordinance and for that purpose the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION 4. 

PENALTY 

 

Any person, firm or corporation who intentionally, knowingly or recklessly violates any provision 

of this Ordinance or the Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, shall be subject to a fine not to 
exceed the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day any 
such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 

SECTION 5. 

SAVINGS 

 

All rights and remedies of the City of Corinth, Texas are expressly saved as to any and all 

violations of the provisions of any other ordinance affecting fees which have secured at the time 
of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigat ion, 

both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances same shall not be 
affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the court. 

                                            71

https://library.municode.com/tx/corinth/codes/unified_development_code?nodeId=S2ZORE_SUBSECTION_2.04REZODI


Ordinance No. 20-11-19-_ 

 

  
SECTION 6. 

SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of the Ordinance are severable. However, in the event this Ordinance or any 
procedure provided in this Ordinance becomes unlawful, or is declared or determined by a judicia l, 
administrative or legislative authority exercising its jurisdiction to be excessive, unenforceab le, 

void, illegal or otherwise inapplicable, in while in part, the remaining and lawful provisions shall 
be of full force and effect and the City shall promptly promulgate new revised provisions in 

compliance with the authority’s decisions or enactment. 
 

  

                                            72



Ordinance No. 20-11-19-_ 

 

SECTION 7. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication as required by law. The City 

Secretary is directed to publish the caption of this Ordinance as required by the City Charter and 
state law. 
 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 

TEXAS on this ______ day of NOVEMBER, 2020. 

 
 
 

 
      _____________________________________ 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
 
Attest: 

 
 

 

Lana Wylie, City Secretary 

 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 

 
______________________________ 

Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney 
 
 

                                            73



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    7.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 11/19/2020  
Title: Board Appointments - BOA, BOCA & P&Z
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager 
Submitted By: Lana Wylie, Administrative Assistant
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on the placement of members for the Board of Adjustments, Board of Construction Appeals, and
the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Place 3 of the Board of Adjustments and the Board of Construction Appeals is vacant. Staff is requesting approval
to fill the vacant position by placing David Payne, from Place 7, 1st Alternate, to Place 3. Staff also requests
Jennifer Olive, Place 6, 2nd Alternate to Place 7, 1st Alternate. 

Place 1 of the Planning and Zoning Commission is vacant. Staff is requesting approval to fill the vacant position by
placing Jennifer Olive from 1st Alternate to Place 1 Commissioner and William Roussell III from 2nd Alternate to
1st Alternate.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the reorganization. 

                                            74


	Agenda
	AI 2113 Presentation and Discussion on the Creation of a Municipal Management District
	AI 2116 Annual Report from the Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman
	AI 2111  Boat and RV Regulations Amendment - Worksession
	AI 2119 Tree Preservation Amendment
	       ATT_Tree Preservation Benchmark Analysis
	AI 2115 Update on the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone
	AI 2095 October  1, 2020, Workshop Session Minutes
	       ATT_October 1, 2020, Workshop Session Minutes
	AI 2096 October 1, 2020, Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_October 1, 2020, Rregular Session Minutes
	AI 2099 September 24, 2020, Special Session Minutes
	       ATT_September 24, 2020, Special Session Minutes
	AI 2114 Amherst Subdivision Development Agreement
	       ATT_Amherst Development Agreement
	AI 2080 Notice of Intent
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 2112  Boat & RV Ordinance Amendment
	       ATT_71.01 Parking Certain Vehicles in Residential Areas - Ordinance
	AI 2110 Board Appointments - BOA, BOCA & P&Z

